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                MR. FARR:  Objection. 1 

                THE WITNESS:  As far as the legislature 2 

       goes, they may have adopted guidelines, but like I 3 

       said, I was working for the legislative leaders. 4 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 5 

  Q.   Did the legislative leaders adopt guidelines? 6 

  A.   I'm not certain.  I think so. 7 

  Q.   What guidelines did you follow in drafting plans 8 

       for -- in Indiana? 9 

  A.   Well, most of the work I did would not have been 10 

       done during the legislative process so I would have 11 

       been drawing plans ahead of the legislative process 12 

       which may or may not have included guidelines. 13 

  Q.   Let's talk about New Jersey for a minute.  Did the 14 

       New Jersey Legislative or Congressional Commission 15 

       adopt criteria to guide the redistricting process? 16 

  A.   These were two separate commissions so I would say 17 

       that I would have to consider them separately. 18 

  Q.   Let's consider them separately.  Did the New Jersey 19 

       Legislative Redistricting Commission adopt written 20 

       criteria to guide the redistricting process? 21 

  A.   I think so. 22 

  Q.   What about the New Jersey Congressional 23 

       Redistricting Commission? 24 

  A.   I think that in that case, because it was a25 
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       Congressional plan, one of the primary concerns was 1 

       to have zero deviation, and I recall that.  Since 2 

       this was a commission, I thought it would be good 3 

       to explain that in this circumstance the parties 4 

       have equal representation in both the Legislative 5 

       Commission and the Congressional Commission, though 6 

       separate, and there's a tie breaker, essentially, 7 

       in each of those cases, so in some cases I seem to 8 

       recall that the tie breaker may have handed down 9 

       some criteria.  I'm not familiar with the process 10 

       that determined what were handed down. 11 

  Q.   And were you working for the Republican leadership 12 

       in New Jersey? 13 

  A.   Yes. 14 

  Q.   Were you working for the Republican leadership in 15 

       Indiana? 16 

  A.   Yes.  They're majority in both chambers, yes. 17 

  Q.   Let's talk about Virginia a minute.  As I 18 

       understand your testimony, you worked with the 19 

       legislative leadership in drafting the plan for the 20 

       House of Delegates; is that correct? 21 

  A.   Yes.  I worked with Delegate Chris Jones who was 22 

       the legislative leader that I had dealt with most 23 

       directly. 24 

  Q.   And was Representative Jones leader of the25 
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       Republican delegation? 1 

  A.   The way it works in Virginia is he -- I do not 2 

       believe he was leader of the Republican delegation. 3 

       He was committee chairman for the committee that 4 

       had jurisdiction of the redistricting matter. 5 

  Q.   And did the House of Delegates in Virginia adopt 6 

       redistricting criteria? 7 

  A.   I don't know. 8 

  Q.   What function did you serve in Virginia?  Did you 9 

       draft plans?  Did you advise leaders?  Did you 10 

       recommend criteria?  Help me understand what you 11 

       did. 12 

  A.   I drafted plans for Delegate Jones. 13 

  Q.   Were those plans adopted? 14 

  A.   Well, I would say that it was a collaborative 15 

       process, and ultimately he negotiated plans with 16 

       other members of both parties. 17 

  Q.   Did those plans include majority-minority 18 

       districts? 19 

  A.   Yes, they did. 20 

  Q.   And Voting Rights districts? 21 

  A.   Yes. 22 

  Q.   Did you draw those districts? 23 

  A.   I may have drawn some of them, yes. 24 

  Q.   What criteria did you apply in drawing those25 
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       districts? 1 

  A.   I drew the districts Delegate Jones asked me to 2 

       draw. 3 

  Q.   Were some of the districts less than 50 percent 4 

       black voting age population? 5 

  A.   Not that I'm aware of. 6 

  Q.   Connecticut, you worked for the redistricting 7 

       commission in Connecticut.  Did I recall that 8 

       correctly? 9 

  A.   Yes. 10 

  Q.   And who retained you to work in Connecticut? 11 

  A.   An attorney working for the redistricting 12 

       commission.  I think I was retained by the 13 

       commission itself. 14 

  Q.   And what role did you serve for that commission? 15 

  A.   I drafted the plans and portions of plans for them 16 

       to consider. 17 

  Q.   And were you given criteria to apply in drafting 18 

       those plans? 19 

  A.   Not specifically. 20 

  Q.   South Carolina, I think you said you were engaged 21 

       in South Carolina with both the South Carolina 22 

       House and the Congressional work. 23 

  A.   And the State Senate. 24 

  Q.   And the Senate.  Who retained you in25 
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       South Carolina? 1 

  A.   Attorneys for the Speaker of the House, the Senate 2 

       Republican leadership in the Senate.  Those were 3 

       the groups that I worked for. 4 

  Q.   And did you work with them in preparing draft 5 

       plans? 6 

  A.   In some cases, yes. 7 

  Q.   Were you given criteria to apply in drawing those 8 

       plans? 9 

  A.   Possibly. 10 

  Q.   Was one of the criterion you were given in drawing 11 

       the Congressional plan communities of interest? 12 

  A.   I don't recall.  I drafted Congressional plans that 13 

       were hypothetical in nature.  I'm not sure what 14 

       they actually did with them. 15 

  Q.   Do you recall a debate in South Carolina about 16 

       whether there should be a Congressional district in 17 

       the low country area? 18 

  A.   Yes, I do. 19 

  Q.   And you were involved in that debate? 20 

  A.   I was involved in that debate. 21 

  Q.   And you proposed a Congressional district in the 22 

       low country area? 23 

  A.   Yes, I did. 24 

  Q.   And that was justified on the basis of community of25 
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       interest in that area; is that correct? 1 

  A.   I don't know. 2 

  Q.   You don't know? 3 

  A.   I don't know. 4 

  Q.   Do you recall what criteria you applied in drawing 5 

       that district? 6 

  A.   No because I drew districts and there was some 7 

       discussion that involved me personally. 8 

  Q.   I read online someplace a description of you and 9 

       you were described as a Republican demographer.  Is 10 

       that an accurate description? 11 

  A.   Yes. 12 

  Q.   Now, looking back at Exhibit 372, it says that from 13 

       2004 to 2007 you served as executive director of 14 

       GOPAC where you worked closely with J.C. Watts to 15 

       expand the base of the Republican Party and advise 16 

       current and future legislative leaders. 17 

                What is GOPAC? 18 

  A.   GOPAC as it exists today is a 527 political 19 

       organization. 20 

  Q.   And you were executive director of GOPAC from '04 21 

       to '07? 22 

  A.   Yes. 23 

  Q.   Exhibit 372 does not report your employment 24 

       specifically between '07 and the present.  Is your25 
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       employment between '07 and the present as president 1 

       of Applied Research Coordinates? 2 

  A.   Yes. 3 

  Q.   I'll get back to this later, but would it be 4 

       accurate that your first involvement in 5 

       redistricting in North Carolina was in the 6 

       2001-2002 redistricting cycle? 7 

  A.   Yes. 8 

  Q.   And during that cycle, who retained you? 9 

  A.   I believe it was the North Carolina Republican 10 

       Party. 11 

  Q.   We'll explore that a little bit later. 12 

                Now, you provided assistance in the 13 

       North Carolina redistricting process this cycle; is 14 

       that correct? 15 

  A.   Yes. 16 

  Q.   Who retained you to provide assistance? 17 

  A.   Well, I was asked by Mr. Farr to assist in working 18 

       on the North Carolina redistricting in this cycle. 19 

  Q.   And were you retained under a written contract? 20 

  A.   I think we discussed the terms over the phone.  We 21 

       may have had an e-mail with an invoice that 22 

       reflected my time. 23 

  Q.   And do you recall the amount you have been 24 

       compensated for your work in North Carolina?25 
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  A.   I would say somewhere between 10 and $15,000. 1 

  Q.   And what's your hourly -- what was your hourly rate 2 

       for your services in North Carolina? 3 

  A.   At that time I didn't have an hourly rate 4 

       established. 5 

  Q.   Then how was your compensation set?  Was it a 6 

       lump-sum payment? 7 

  A.   Yes. 8 

  Q.   And who actually paid you for your services? 9 

  A.   I don't recall the exact name of the organization. 10 

       I think it was Fair and Legal Districts for 11 

       North Carolina, something like that. 12 

  Q.   Do you recall when you first provided services to 13 

       Mr. Farr for this round of redistricting? 14 

                MR. FARR:  Objection to the form of the 15 

       question. 16 

                THE WITNESS:  I'm not sure I understand 17 

       the question. 18 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 19 

  Q.   Did you begin work on the North Carolina project in 20 

       March of 2011, in April of 2011? 21 

  A.   No. 22 

  Q.   When did you start? 23 

  A.   It was after that. 24 

  Q.   I'm going to ask the court reporter to mark a25 
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       document as Exhibit 373. 1 

                (WHEREUPON, Exhibit 373 was marked for 2 

       identification.) 3 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 4 

  Q.   Mr. Morgan, is Exhibit 373 an e-mail exchange 5 

       between you and Mr. Farr dated May 30, 2011? 6 

  A.   Yes. 7 

  Q.   Would you take a minute to review this e-mail, and 8 

       I would like to ask you if this e-mail would 9 

       refresh your memory about when you began providing 10 

       services in North Carolina in 2011. 11 

  A.   I see the document. 12 

  Q.   And does this refresh your memory about when you 13 

       began providing services? 14 

  A.   I said that I provided services in May. 15 

  Q.   And I examined carefully the documents that you had 16 

       provided to us and was unable to identify the 17 

       invoices that you had sent to Mr. Farr in this 18 

       invoice. 19 

                Do you recall sending him invoices for your 20 

       services? 21 

  A.   Yes. 22 

  Q.   Do you have those invoices? 23 

  A.   I don't have them with me. 24 

                MR. SPEAS:  Mr. Farr, I think those would25 
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       have been encompassed within the scope of our 1 

       request for documents, so if we could get those, 2 

       that would be very helpful. 3 

                MR. FARR:  We'll take that under 4 

       consideration. 5 

                MR. SPEAS:  Is it your position that those 6 

       invoices are somehow privileged? 7 

                MR. FARR:  May be and may be irrelevant. 8 

       I guess I can start asking Chris Ketchie for 9 

       information about who paid him and that sort of 10 

       thing, so we'll consider it. 11 

                MR. SPEAS:  Okay. 12 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 13 

  Q.   In these invoices, Mr. Morgan, did you detail the 14 

       work you did or did you simply submit a lump-sum 15 

       request for payment? 16 

  A.   It would have been a lump-sum request for payment. 17 

  Q.   Just so I can get some handle on this, your memory 18 

       is that you began working for Mr. Farr in May of 19 

       2011? 20 

  A.   Yes. 21 

                MR. FARR:  Objection to the form. 22 

                MR. SPEAS:  Let me show you an another 23 

       document marked 374. 24 

  ///25 
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                (WHEREUPON, Exhibit 374 was marked for 1 

       identification.) 2 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 3 

  Q.   Mr. Morgan, is Exhibit 374 an e-mail exchange 4 

       between you and Tom Farr in August 2011? 5 

  A.   It appears to be, yes. 6 

  Q.   And you had not been paid for your services in 7 

       August; is that correct? 8 

  A.   That's correct. 9 

  Q.   Were you retained to draw a redistricting plan for 10 

       Sampson County, North Carolina, in 2011? 11 

  A.   I was retained by Mr. Farr to work on Sampson 12 

       County redistricting. 13 

  Q.   What did you do for Mr. Farr for Sampson County? 14 

       Did you draw a plan? 15 

  A.   Could you rephrase the question, please.  You asked 16 

       two questions. 17 

  Q.   I'm sorry.  Did you draw a redistricting plan for 18 

       the Sampson County Board of Commissioners in 2011? 19 

  A.   Yes. 20 

  Q.   And did the Sampson County Board of Commissioners 21 

       give you criteria to apply in drawing that plan? 22 

  A.   I wouldn't call them criteria, no. 23 

  Q.   What instructions, advice, suggestions did they 24 

       give you in performing your assignment to draw them25 
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       a redistricting plan? 1 

  A.   I received instructions from commissioners and from 2 

       attorneys representing the commissioners. 3 

  Q.   What were those instructions? 4 

                MR. FARR:  I'm going to object to the 5 

       extent that you got legal instructions from either 6 

       me or -- 7 

                MR. SPEAS:  I'm not asking about legal 8 

       instructions from Mr. Farr.  Let me ask what 9 

       instructions you received. 10 

                MR. FARR:  Or in that chain, who is an 11 

       attorney for the Sampson County Board of 12 

       Commissioners, but you can certainly tell Mr. Speas 13 

       about any instructions you got from the 14 

       commissioners. 15 

                THE WITNESS:  Regarding instructions from 16 

       commissioners, they were -- the commissioners 17 

       themselves were primarily concerned about the 18 

       treatment of their own district in the 19 

       redistricting plan, and I recall discussing 20 

       individual districts with them one by one. 21 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 22 

  Q.   Did you receive any written instructions from the 23 

       Sampson County commissioners or any individual 24 

       Sampson County commissioners with regard to how to25 
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       draw the plans? 1 

  A.   I did not receive written instruction from them. 2 

  Q.   Did you also assist the Craven County Board of 3 

       Commissioners in drawing a redistricting plan in 4 

       2011? 5 

  A.   I am working on redistricting with Craven County. 6 

       It's ongoing. 7 

  Q.   And is that for the Board of County Commissioners? 8 

  A.   It is. 9 

  Q.   And have you received -- have you been retained by 10 

       the Sampson -- I mean the Craven County 11 

       commissioners to draw a plan? 12 

  A.   Yes. 13 

  Q.   Directly by the Craven County commissioners? 14 

  A.   I'm working with another attorney in that case so 15 

       I've been retained by the attorney. 16 

  Q.   Mr. Hurley? 17 

  A.   That's correct. 18 

  Q.   And have the Craven County commissioners provided 19 

       you any written criteria with regard to the drawing 20 

       of their plans? 21 

                MR. FARR:  Mr. Morgan, same thing, if the 22 

       commissioners had communicated with you, that's 23 

       fine, but I believe that if you have received 24 

       instructions from Mr. Hurley that that would not be25 
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       appropriate for you in answering that question. 1 

                THE WITNESS:  I have not received written 2 

       instructions from the commissioners.  I have met 3 

       with them and discussed their districts. 4 

                MR. SPEAS:  And let's mark this as 5 

       Exhibit 375. 6 

                (WHEREUPON, Exhibit 375 was marked for 7 

       identification.) 8 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 9 

  Q.   Mr. Morgan, 375 is another e-mail exchange between 10 

       you and Mr. Farr dated September 23, 2011. 11 

                Can you identify that document? 12 

  A.   Yes. 13 

  Q.   And in the first line, does Mr. Farr inform you 14 

       that Senator Rucho has raised some money in the 15 

       501(c)(3) and you should be getting your payment 16 

       soon? 17 

  A.   Yes. 18 

  Q.   And were you finally paid? 19 

  A.   Yes. 20 

  Q.   And do you recall the amount you were paid? 21 

  A.   No. 22 

  Q.   You began providing services -- let's just clear 23 

       this up. 24 

                Who retained you?  For whom were you25 



 30 

       working in North Carolina in 2011? 1 

  A.   Well, as I said, Mr. Farr asked me to get involved, 2 

       so I was working at his direction for Senator 3 

       Rucho. 4 

  Q.   So you were working at Mr. Farr's direction for 5 

       Senator Rucho? 6 

  A.   I was working at Senator Rucho's direction. 7 

       Mr. Farr put us together. 8 

  Q.   Now, when did you first meet Senator Rucho? 9 

  A.   Probably in May of 2011. 10 

  Q.   And do you recall where you met him? 11 

  A.   I believe at the North Carolina Republican Party 12 

       headquarters. 13 

  Q.   And who else was present on that occasion? 14 

  A.   I'm not sure.  There were several people there.  I 15 

       wasn't introduced to everybody. 16 

  Q.   And what was the subject of that initial 17 

       conversation with Senator Rucho? 18 

  A.   That I would be helping him to draw plans. 19 

  Q.   And did he give you instructions as to what he 20 

       wanted to accomplish with the plans? 21 

  A.   I'm not sure I understand the question. 22 

  Q.   I think that's a very plain question, Mr. Morgan. 23 

                Did he tell you what he wanted you to do 24 

       when you were drawing plans for him?25 
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  A.   That's a different question. 1 

  Q.   Can you answer it? 2 

  A.   The second question or the first? 3 

  Q.   The second. 4 

  A.   Yes.  He gave me instructions. 5 

  Q.   And what were those instructions? 6 

  A.   He would ask me to draw plans in a particular area 7 

       or to work on particular areas of a plan. 8 

  Q.   And do you recall the particular areas he asked you 9 

       to work on? 10 

  A.   I would say not much in the west and not much in 11 

       the east.  It was primarily Mecklenburg, Wake, in 12 

       the Fayetteville area, the Durham area, Goldsboro, 13 

       some of that area. 14 

  Q.   Forsyth county? 15 

  A.   Yes, I did some work in Forsyth county.  And 16 

       probably some in Guilford. 17 

  Q.   Did you meet with any other member of the 18 

       North Carolina Senate other than Senator Rucho? 19 

  A.   I met Senator Berger. 20 

  Q.   When did you meet Senator Berger? 21 

  A.   I don't know.  I don't think it was in May.  It may 22 

       have been in June or July. 23 

  Q.   And describe that meeting for me, please. 24 

  A.   Senator Berger was introduced to me as a senator.25 
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       I recall he's from Rockingham county.  He was 1 

       interested in his district which had Rockingham and 2 

       parts of Guilford.  I think he's one of the leaders 3 

       in the Senate. 4 

  Q.   Do you recall him giving you any instructions or 5 

       directions with regard to drawing the Senate map 6 

       generally other than with regard to his own 7 

       district? 8 

  A.   Senator Berger, no. 9 

  Q.   Other than Senator Berger and Senator Rucho, do you 10 

       recall meeting at any time with any member of the 11 

       North Carolina Senate? 12 

  A.   I don't remember a specific senator.  It may be 13 

       that there was another senator that was there, but 14 

       I remember Senator Berger and Senator Rucho. 15 

  Q.   At any point did you meet with Representative David 16 

       Lewis? 17 

  A.   Yes.  I knew him from 2001. 18 

  Q.   And how did you know Representative Lewis from 19 

       2001? 20 

  A.   I think he was elected in the 2002 election, so if 21 

       I said 2001, perhaps I should have said 2002. 22 

                I was involved in the redistricting 23 

       process, and I also was involved in the electoral 24 

       process of the 2002 election, and as such I met25 
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       with most of the candidates who ran for the 1 

       North Carolina State House that were Republicans. 2 

  Q.   Did you meet with Representative Lewis at any time 3 

       in 2011 to discuss House redistricting? 4 

  A.   No.  I had known him.  I think he's also an RNC, 5 

       Republican National Committee, official so I had 6 

       seen him at other redistricting meetings. 7 

  Q.   I would take it from that answer that in 2011 you 8 

       did not provide any specific services to any -- any 9 

       specific services with regard to the North Carolina 10 

       House redistricting plans; is that correct? 11 

  A.   No, no specific services. 12 

  Q.   Did you address Congressional redistricting issues 13 

       with Senator Rucho? 14 

  A.   I think a little bit, but primarily I worked on the 15 

       State Senate. 16 

  Q.   Now, did you work with Thomas Hofeller in 2011 with 17 

       regard to the Senate redistricting plans? 18 

  A.   He was present at the North Carolina GOP 19 

       headquarters.  I don't know that I worked with him 20 

       directly.  I don't even know if he was working on 21 

       the Senate. 22 

  Q.   And did you have any understanding as to the role 23 

       Mr. Hofeller played with regard to North Carolina 24 

       redistricting?25 
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  A.   I was under the impression that he was drawing 1 

       district plans for the North Carolina Senate, 2 

       House, Congressional, and I don't know if he was 3 

       doing all of those three or some of those three. 4 

       And I think I was brought in partly to be another 5 

       set of hands to work on plans like the State 6 

       Senate. 7 

  Q.   Did you work with Mr. Hofeller in 2002 or 2003 on 8 

       the North Carolina redistricting? 9 

  A.   I spent a lot of time in North Carolina in 2001, 10 

       2002, 2003.  Somewhere during that time I'm sure I 11 

       saw Dr. Hofeller in North Carolina. 12 

  Q.   Did you work with Dale Oldham in North Carolina in 13 

       2011? 14 

  A.   He was at the North Carolina GOP headquarters 15 

       during some of the time that I was there. 16 

  Q.   And did you have any understanding with regard to 17 

       Mr. Oldham's redistricting responsibilities? 18 

  A.   I'm not certain what his actual responsibilities 19 

       were. 20 

  Q.   Did you work with Joel Raupe in 2011 in 21 

       North Carolina redistricting? 22 

  A.   I didn't work with him on a day-to-day basis.  He 23 

       was present there.  He had an office.  He provided 24 

       me some information if I asked it.25 
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  Q.   Did you work with Nathan Babcock in drawing the 1 

       North Carolina districts in 2011? 2 

  A.   Yes, he was there, and I believe he was working 3 

       with Senator Rucho on the project for State Senate 4 

       redistricting. 5 

  Q.   Was Mr. Babcock drawing districts? 6 

  A.   He wasn't drawing them on redistricting software, 7 

       that I know of, but I believe he was drawing 8 

       districts on other software, internet-based 9 

       software. 10 

  Q.   Okay.  And who is Mr. Babcock? 11 

  A.   I think he was the political director for the 12 

       North Carolina Republican Party or he worked with 13 

       Senator Rucho as the Senate political director. 14 

       I'm not quite clear on his position. 15 

  Q.   I don't think I asked you this, but if I'm 16 

       repetitive, I apologize.  Did you work with 17 

       Mr. Oldham in 2001, 2002 or 2003 on North Carolina 18 

       redistricting? 19 

  A.   I think so.  He certainly was in North Carolina for 20 

       some of the time I was in North Carolina which, as 21 

       I mentioned, was an extended period.  The cases 22 

       went on and on in that 2001 experience. 23 

  Q.   Did you work with Joel Raupe in 2001, 2002 or 2003 24 

       in North Carolina on redistricting?25 
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  A.   Yes, I met him in that time period, and he was 1 

       working with the Republican Party during that time 2 

       period. 3 

  Q.   Other than Representative Lewis, did you meet with 4 

       any member of the House of Representatives in 2011? 5 

  A.   I don't -- there were some members that I knew 6 

       previously and I guess I expected to see some of 7 

       them but I didn't. 8 

                So I saw Representative Lewis.  I think 9 

       they introduced me to someone named Representative 10 

       Dollar, but, really, Representative Lewis was the 11 

       one that I guess I knew best by this point. 12 

                (WHEREUPON, Exhibit 376 was marked for 13 

       identification.) 14 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 15 

  Q.   Let me mark another document.  Mr. Morgan, is 16 

       Exhibit 376 an e-mail you received from Nathan 17 

       Babcock on June 8, 2011? 18 

  A.   Yes, it looks like it. 19 

  Q.   Would you tell me the subject of that e-mail? 20 

  A.   Wireless network. 21 

  Q.   And you indicated a minute ago that Mr. Babcock was 22 

       not drawing districts with the software but through 23 

       another means.  Is this the means by which 24 

       Mr. Babcock was drawing districts?25 
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  A.   No.  I'm sorry, this looks like it's a pass code 1 

       for a wireless network. 2 

  Q.   Do you recall when you last provided services to 3 

       the North Carolina Republican Party with regard to 4 

       redistricting in 2011? 5 

                MR. FARR:  Objection to form. 6 

                You can answer the question. 7 

                THE WITNESS:  Probably in July 2011. 8 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 9 

  Q.   So the period of your work in 2011 was May to July? 10 

  A.   That seems correct. 11 

  Q.   Mr. Morgan, I'd like to talk with you specifically 12 

       about your work on the Senate plan, and I'd like to 13 

       do that by asking you to look at an e-mail chain 14 

       that we'll mark as Exhibit 377. 15 

                (WHEREUPON, Exhibit 377 was marked for 16 

       identification.) 17 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 18 

  Q.   Mr. Morgan, in front of you is Exhibit 377 which is 19 

       an e-mail chain between you and Nathan Babcock on 20 

       May 27, 2011.  Do you recognize these e-mails? 21 

  A.   Yes. 22 

  Q.   And I'd like to begin our discussion here by 23 

       talking first about Mr. Babcock's e-mail to you on 24 

       May 27th at 2:17 p.m.25 
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                Would you take just a minute to read that 1 

       e-mail message from Mr. Babcock. 2 

  A.   Okay. 3 

  Q.   Does Mr. Babcock's e-mail at 2:17 on May 27th 4 

       describe the issues that you were brought in to 5 

       address by Mr. Farr? 6 

                MR. FARR:  Objection to form. 7 

                THE WITNESS:  I think I said that I was 8 

       working for Senator Rucho. 9 

  BY MR. SPEAS: 10 

  Q.   Does this e-mail from Mr. Babcock describe the 11 

       issues that you were brought in by Mr. Rucho to 12 

       address, Senator Rucho to address? 13 

  A.   I'm not quite sure I understand what you mean by 14 

       "issue," but I would say that I was brought in to 15 

       draw plans and potential plans. 16 

  Q.   Did you actually draw plans for Senator Rucho, sit 17 

       down at the computer yourself and draw plans? 18 

  A.   Yes. 19 

  Q.   And did you give those plans a name? 20 

  A.   Sometimes. 21 

  Q.   And do you recall the names of those plans? 22 

  A.   I think that sometimes we would give plans a name 23 

       if they had -- how would I describe this -- a 24 

       series of plans, yes.25 
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                             )   C E R T I F I C A T E 
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   3 

                I, DENISE L. MYERS, Court Reporter and 4 

       Notary Public, the officer before whom the foregoing 5 

       proceeding was conducted, do hereby certify that the 6 

       witness(es) whose testimony appears in the foregoing 7 

       proceeding were duly sworn by me; that the testimony 8 

       of said witness(es) were taken by me to the best of 9 

       my ability and thereafter transcribed under my 10 

       supervision; and that the foregoing pages, inclusive, 11 

       constitute a true and accurate transcription of the 12 

       testimony of the witness(es). 13 

                I do further certify that I am neither 14 

       counsel for, related to, nor employed by any of the 15 

       parties to this action, and further, that I am not a 16 

       relative or employee of any attorney or counsel 17 

       employed by the parties thereof, nor financially or 18 

       otherwise interested in the outcome of said action. 19 

       This the 2nd day of July 2012. 20 

   21 

   22 

   23 

                       Denise L. Myers 

                       My commission expires 9/14/2013 24 
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